10

11

12
13

14

15
16

17
18
19
20

21
22
23

24

25
26
27

28
29
30
31
32

33
34

SELECTBOARD MEETING
December 7, 2023

Attending the meeting; Merrily Lovell, Maggie Gordon, Dennis Place, Phil Pouech, Joy Dubin Grossman,
Diane Barber, Mike Anthony, Jon Moore

Attending remotely; Mike Loner, Todd Odit, Ben Marks, Chuck Reiss
Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. via zoom

Agenda Additions or Deletions

There will be an executive session at the end of the meeting.

Public Comment

None

Approve Minutes of 11/16

Phil moved to approve the minutes of 11/16/22 with any agreed upon edits. Seconded by Maggie and
approved with 5 yes votes.

Selectboard Forum

Mike L said the DEI workgroup met yesterday. They are starting to work on drafting a possible charter.
They discussed the fact that the Selectboard may want to appoint an official DEI committee.

Merrily reported on the meeting with Richmond regarding collaborative policing. She noted that Todd
brought up the public safety survey that Hinesburg will be doing. They discussed if Richmond should be
included or if they would do a public safety survey. Merrily thinks Richmond will be included in some
way. They will not be meeting again till the survey work is underway perhaps in March or April.

Phil said he has been approached about interest in a dog park. He advised the individual to continue to
collect information to potentially present to the Selectboard. Phil said he talked with Jen McCuin about
it and she declined involvement as the Recreation Commission is overloaded with work at this time.

GMTA Presentation —Jon Moore

Jon gave a brief history about the start of the Rt 116 commuter route. They are proposing Hinesburg
annual assessment increase to be 4%. Ridership is still down due to the pandemic and the average is 27
boardings a day. There are four round trips from Burlington to the Town Hall parking area a day.

Dennis asked if the riders have to pay for the service. Jon said not currently, since the start of the
pandemic they have been using federal relief funds to offset fare revenue. Dennis also asked if they have
looked into starting earlier as there are a lot of manufacturing companies that start the work day early.
Jon said they have and are always willing to do outreach to local businesses. First bus leaves Burlington at
6:10 a.m.

Phil noted that not all municipalities pay a fee and there is a study to look at getting funding from
everyone.

Approved 12-21-22



35
36
37

38

39
40
41
42
43

44
45
46
47
48
49
50

51
52
53
54

55

56
57
58

59
60

61
62

63
64

65

66
67

68

69
70

Mike L asked if through their studies and surveys do they know how many riders are Hinesburg residents
vs other towns whose residents drive to Hinesburg to ride the bus. Jon said they know just know the
boarding point of the rider not place of residence.

Consider Approval of Public Safety Strategic Plan Consultant

Joy reported on the second meeting with MRI and CGR to ask more questions and go over costs. MRI
would not be able to include the diversity, equity and inclusion piece we are looking for. CGR was asked
if they have worked with smaller communities like Hinesburg. They had and provided some examples.
They are also willing to lower the price down to $71,500. They will not be doing the survey. They rated
high in the diversity, equity and inclusion piece.

Diane Barber asked if they don’t do a survey how will they know how residents and members of the Police
and Fire Departments feel about public safety. Joy said instead of an electronic survey they will come and
talk to people in Town. They will be setting meetings to talk with individuals and groups. Diane asked if
the Town will vote on what the Board decides to do after getting the information. Will residents have a
voice on what is implemented. Merrily said part of CGR mission is to listen to everybody. Phil said he
does not think there will be anything specific to vote on but recommendations for the Board and Town
Manager.

Phil moved the Selectboard adopts CGR’s revised proposal for the Public Safety Strategic Plan. Seconded
by Maggie. Phil said he believes the Town will be using some ARPA funds toward this. Merrily said they
are not voting on funding, that discussion will take place next week. Motion voted and approved with 5
yes votes.

Consider Approval of Highway Truck Purchase

Two highway trucks are due to be replaced. Mike A said usually the trucks are replaced on a 10 year cycle,
the 2009 was pushed out to purchase the grader. Payment is not due till the trucks are received which
will take about two years but we need to allocate funds in the budget.

Phil asked what is the advantage of buying both now. Mike said the 2009 is for this year and the 2014 is
for next year in the capital budget.

Todd said we need to commit that we will find $250.000 to make a down payment on the trucks. We can
finance the rest over 5 years. Todd suggests using $125,000 of ARPA funds.

Maggie said she is disappointed we could not wait another week for this till they meet to discuss use of
ARPA funds. She finds it frustrating doing it this way as they don’t have the big picture.

Dennis said we can vote on purchasing the trucks and figure out the down payment later.

Dennis moved to approve the purchase to replace the 2009 and 2014 trucks. Seconded by Phil and
approved with 5 yes votes.

Consider Approval of Revised FY23 Water Allocations

Todd reported due to updated information from the State on what the wells can produce we have 17,821
gpd available to allocate.

Approved 12-21-22



71
72
73
74

75
76

77

78
79

80

81
82

83
84
85

86

87
88

89
90

91
92

93

94

95

96
97
98

99

100
101
102

103

Phil asked is the process moving forward to increase the nano filtration capacity along with the other
wells? Todd said we will have to add another train for the additional well. Phil asked when the next well
will need to come on line. Todd said it depends on if we take another look at what we require for use per
day per bedroom.

Phil recommended as the water and wastewater commissioners to adopt the revised water and allocation
pools as submitted. Seconded by Maggie and approved with 5 yes votes.

Review Draft FY 24 Operating and Capital Budgets and Warn Public Hearing

Merrily noted past budgets being supported by money taken from the fund balance to offset the increase.
We are now working on gradually weaning away from that practice.

The Fire Department has been increased by $25,000 for on call staff pay but is not funding 2 FF/EMT’s.

Dennis asked how much money would need to be taken off this budget to keep taxes level. Todd said we
would need to cut $316,000 from the budget.

Mike L asked if we are trying to jump from 10% to 15% kept in the general fund this year. Todd said that
was the goal last year. We will not be in a position each year to assume we have $250,000 to put toward
taxes and have enough left over for emergencies.

Phil noted more fund balance can be put toward taxes to be raised when the Board sets the tax rate.

Merrily moved to warn a public hearing for the operating and capital budgets at 7:00 p.m. on January 4,
2023. Seconded by Maggie.

Diane B commented about the Police Budget and asked it there is money to pay for an on call person at
night. Todd said coverage is 7 to 11 Monday through Friday plus funds to cover overnight shifts.

Diane said she would like to see Todd, Joy and Board members help with ideas for volunteer recruitment
for firefighters and not to require cross training for both firefighter and EMS.

Phil asked Todd for some recommendations on things we could reduce in the budget.
Motion on public hearing voted and approved with 5 yes votes.

Consider Approval of Easement to VEC for Landfill Solar Project

Phil moved to provide an easement to Vermont Electric Cooperative to extend their electrical lines for the
anticipated solar project as shown on the diagram being out of the Town right-of-way and appoint Todd
Odit as the duly appointed agent. Seconded by Maggie and approved with 5 yes votes.

Consider Approval of Lease Option Agreement with Acorn Solar

Phil moved to approve the proposed amendment to the Lease Option Agreement between Acorn
Renewable Energy Co-op and the Town and appointing Todd Odit to sign. Seconded by Maggie and
approved with 5 yes votes.

Town Manager Report

Approved 12-21-22



104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111

112

113
114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

e There has been a verbal offer and acceptance for a third highway employee who will need to be
trained for a CDL

e Todd is meeting with the State Police on Friday

e Evaluation of department heads will continue when schedule allows

e Expect draft financials of the school year 22 audit soon

e Looking into getting red solar powered flashing signal lights at the new intersection by Texas Hill
Rd.

e Selective bargaining contract negotiations will begin after Town Meeting

Approval of Warrants and Payroll

Merrily moved to approve the warrants, including payroll, submitted by the Town Treasurer and signed
by herself and Maggie. Seconded by Maggie and approved with 5 yes votes.

Consider a Motion to Enter Executive Session Under Provisions of 1 V.S.A.§ 313(a)(1)(A)

Merrily moved to go into Exective Session Under Provisions of 1 V.S.A.§ 313(a)(1)(A) to discuss a contract,
premature disclosure could put the Town at a disadvantage. The meeting will include only Selectboard
members. Seconded by Maggie and approved with 5 yes votes.

Phil moved to come out of executive session, seconded by Maggie and approved with 5 yes votes.
Phil moved to adjourn at 9:02 p.m., seconded by Maggie and approved with 5 yes votes.
Respectfully submitted,

Valerie Spadaccini, clerk of the Board

Approved 12-21-22



